# Minutes of a meeting of Scrutiny Committee for Housing, Planning and Economic Growth held on Thursday, 22nd October, 2020 from 5.00 - 6.36 pm

Present: C Laband (Vice-Chair)

R Bates	R Cromie	G Marsh
M Belsey	R Eggleston	A Peacock
P Brown	S Hatton	R Webb
E Coe-	J Henwood	
Gunnell White		

Absent:	Councillors N Walker and J Mockford
Also Present:	Councillors A Bennett, P Chapman, A Eves and I Gibson
Also Present as Cabinet Members:	Councillors S Hillier, J Llewellyn-Burke , R de Mierre and A MacNaughton.

# 1 ROLL CALL AND VIRTUAL MEETING EXPLANATION.

The Chairman carried out a roll call to establish attendance at the meeting. The Chairman proposed Cllr Marsh is elected as Vice-chairman for the meeting, this was agreed by a vote. The Solicitor to the Council provided information on the format of the virtual meeting.

# 2 TO NOTE SUBSTITUTES IN ACCORDANCE WITH COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 4 - SUBSTITUTES AT MEETINGS OF COMMITTEES ETC.

Councillor Pulfer substituted for Councillor Walker and Councillor Dabell substituted for Councillor Mockford.

# **3** TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.

Apologies were received from Councillors Mockford and Walker.

# 4 TO RECEIVE DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS FROM MEMBERS IN RESPECT OF ANY MATTER ON THE AGENDA.

Councillor Eggleston declared a non-prejudicial interest in item 8 as he is an appointed trustee of the Beehive, Burgess Hill and is a Member of Burgess Hill Town Council. Councillors Pulfer and Bates declared a non-prejudicial interest in item 8 as they are both Haywards Heath Town Councillors. Councillor Laband declared a non-prejudicial interest in item 8 as he lives within the area identified on Haywards Heath Town Centre's Master Plan. Tom Clark, Solicitor declared a non-prejudicial interest

in item 8 as he owns a flat within the area identified on Haywards Heath Town Centre's Master Plan.

## 5 TO CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR HOUSING, PLANNING AND ECONOMIC GROWTH HELD ON 29 JULY 2020.

A minor amendment to the minutes was agreed, "In response to a Members concern about cycle parking at commercial premises, the Urban Designer noted that it was referenced under DG24 but in a residential setting". The amended minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 29 July 2020 were agreed as a correct record with 10 votes in favour, 1 against, and 2 abstentions. These were electronically signed by the Chairman.

# 6 TO CONSIDER ANY ITEMS THAT THE CHAIRMAN AGREES TO TAKE AS URGENT BUSINESS.

None.

# 7 PARKING STRATEGY AND ACTION PLAN 2020 - 2030

Claire Onslow, Business Unit Leader Parking Services advised that the current Parking Strategy expired in 2020. She reminded the Committee that a cross party working group had been set up to lead on refreshing the strategy and Parking Matters Ltd had been appointed as the consultant. This high-level strategy provides a 10-year strategic framework for the future management of the Council's car parks with the overall objective to support sustainable economic growth. The strategy has a 5-year rolling action plan to ensure it remains agile and relevant in the current and future economic climate and takes into account the anticipated impact of the Coronavirus pandemic. The prediction for economic recovery has been based on previous economic recessions. She noted that the Working Group had agreed the document in principle and if it was approved today Council would consider adoption in December 2020.

Several Members of the Working Group welcomed the comprehensive document, thanked the Working Group and officers and expressed support for the recommendations.

Members discussed Electric Vehicle Charging points (EVCs), the use of digital technology to manage the Council's car parks, subsidised parking for retailers and future use of car parking sites.

The Business Unit Leader for Parking Services reiterated that this was a high-level document and further work streams would provide more detailed proposals for Members to consider in due course. She noted that as part of a separate sustainability work stream a tender was underway and work would start next year on installing 26 new EVCs. Any future demand would be identified in the Investment Strategy.

Judy Holmes, Assistant Chief Executive advised the Council has not been approached to provide subsidised parking for retailers and the Council's approach would be to work with all employers to encourage the use of season tickets. Each request would be considered on a case by case basis. She confirmed the Working Group had seen evidence to support the proposals in the Strategy and Action Plan. Stephen Hillier, Cabinet Member for Economic Growth added that Cabinet would discuss any such request. The Chairman noted that Waitrose in Burgess Hill subsidises car parking for its customers to raise footfall in its store.

Members discussed how the Government's aim to promote and encourage support of local businesses would integrate with the strategy and the future size of parking spaces.

The Business Unit Leader advised that a feasibility study of each car park, would identify the community's needs, as a one size fits all approach is not appropriate. This work will inform the development of the strategy.

Councillor Gary Marsh, Chairman of the Parking Strategy Working Group thanked the members of the working group and Parking Matters. He reminded Members that it is a high-level strategy and a long-term plan. He urged members to support the recommendations.

Members expressed concern with the change of shopping habits due to Covid-19 and discussed employment travel plans, season tickets and tariffs.

The Business Unit Leader for Parking Services commented that the Council must take stock of their estate and future plans. Modal shift work starts in 2022 and the Council will work with employers and West Sussex County Council to ensure their travel plans are monitored. The future operation of season tickets and the tariffs is being explored in feasibility work and will be reported back to Members. A virtual season ticket would give the Council more options for a flexible tariff, more agility and meet customer demand.

Rob Anderton, Divisional Leader for Commercial Services and Contracts advised that the Working Group discussed season tickets at length and concluded that the are still an important part of the overall parking offer. The Council will still provide season tickets. They are used by local residents and workers as well as commuters.

In response to a Members question on the comparison of tariffs of adjoining authorities and the duration of the action plan, the Assistant Chief Executive advised that Lewes District Council already has a differential parking tariff regime and Wealden do not charge for parking. The strategy provides a framework for the strategic direction which is in line with the District Plan, a rolling action plan allows for agility.

The Chairman asked how many pay and display car parks have the Park Mark accreditation and was it the Council's aspiration to get all car parks accredited. The Business Unit Leader advised she would report back on the number already accredited, and future investment is planned to obtain accreditation for more car parks.

The Chairman confirmed that Cabinet would receive an annual review on the Parking Strategy.

As there were no further questions the Chairman took the Committee to the recommendations which was agreed with 12 votes in favour and 1 abstention.

#### RESOLVED

That the Scrutiny Committee for Planning, Housing and Economic Growth:

- a. Considered the Parking Strategy and Action Plan 2020 2030 and Covid Addendum and provides comments and observations to Council.
- b. Recommended to Council that the Parking Strategy and Action Plan 2020 2030 be approved.

#### 8 HAYWARDS HEATH TOWN CENTRE MASTERPLAN SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT - CONSULTATION DRAFT

Andrew Marsh, Business Unit Leader for Planning Policy introduced the report. He commented that the Town Centre plays a vital role in the heart of the community, and it must remain vibrant and prosperous. Haywards Heath has good transport links, and a good public realm, which the Master Plan seeks to regenerate. The high-level framework of the Master Plan will provide clarity for the community and investors. It will also support bids for future funding and priorities for future projects. The Master Plan will be a material consideration for future planning schemes and will replace the existing 2007 Masterplan. It will not set policy but will supplement District Plan policy DP2. The Masterplan draws together a number of existing studies such as those prepared by the County Council and Town Council.

The Business Unit Leader highlighted various sections of the report and confirmed that the inclusion of a site in the Master Plan does not confirm the site is available. He noted the public consultation in November and December and the Community Involvement Plan. The consultation results will come back to the committee in January 2021 and the Council will consider the next version for adoption in March 2021.

Several Members welcomed the comprehensive report and the Chairman commented that the public need to contribute to ensure a robust document going forward. Members questioned how the Council would engage the public in the consultation in the current pandemic.

The Business Unit Leader confirmed the current restrictions regarding the pandemic had been considered. He noted that the Council had received a good response to virtual consultations over the last six months. To encourage participation in the consultation, an interactive map facility was being made available on the website. Consultees could then click and view the proposals and interact that way. Copies of the Master Plan would be available in the library, help-point and the Town Council's office for inspection should restrictions allow. They hoped to include an article in the next edition of Mid Sussex Matters as it is distributed to every household in the District, ensuring a wide reach. There would also be the usual press release and listings on social media.

In response to a Member's question, Sally Blomfield, Divisional Leader for Planning & Economy advised that Burgess Hill has a strong variety of employment sectors, and the banking and financial sectors of Burgess Hill had been included as they are the strongest examples. She stated the time frame of the Master Plan was 2031, to tie in with District Plan and references to short, medium and long term was in this context.

Members expressed concern that on-street parking causes traffic congestion, queried the use of Controlled Parking Zones, timing for the introduction of 20 mph zones, and plans for a multi storey car park at The Orchards.

The Business Unit Leader advised that the operation side of parking is not in the high-level Master Plan as that will be covered by other work streams. The reduction of traffic is a key part of the Plan. The aspiration is to make South Road and The Broadway more pedestrian friendly. The inclusion of traffic calming, pedestrian crossings and speed limits should divert traffic to the relief road where there is greater capacity. Further projects will investigate the design and effectiveness of other measures. He confirmed a multi storey car park at The Orchards was part of the proposals on page 126 which contain a number of principles for consideration at design stage

In response to a Member's question on the boundary for Haywards Heath Town Centre and why Boltro Road was not included, the Business Unit Leader advised it covered areas which contained Town Centre uses, as described on page 133 of the report. He reminded the Committee that this was a draft document, subject to a public consultation, where other views could be expressed.

Members expressed concern that the public might get confused with this consultation and that of the future use of Clair Hall.

Rob Anderton, Divisional Leader for Commercial Services and Contracts confirmed he would work with the policy team to ensure the processes for the consultations align and there should be no confusion for the public. He noted that the users of Clair Hall would be consulted through the use of a consultant.

In response to a question about the detailed proposed layout of the gyratory, the Business Unit Leader confirmed that this is a high-level plan only, setting principles, and stakeholders would be involved at the design stage of schemes. The Master Plan only establishes aims and principles.

Andrew MacNaughton, Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning thanked the Business Unit Leader for his thorough introduction. He highlighted that the Council must consider the comments received.

As there were no further questions the Chairman took the Committee to the recommendations which was agreed unanimously.

#### RESOLVED

That the Scrutiny Committee:

- (i) Considered the Consultation Draft Haywards Heath Town Centre Masterplan SPD;
- (ii) Delegated authority to Divisional Leader for Planning and Economy, in consultation with the Cabinet Member, to make typographical, grammatical and photographic editorial changes before consultation; and
- (iii) Recommended that Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning approves the document for public consultation.

#### 9 SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR HOUSING, PLANNING AND ECONOMIC GROWTH - WORK PROGRAMME 2020/21.

Tom Clark, Head of Regulatory Services introduced the Committee's Work Programme. He noted the report on the outcome of the public consultation on the Haywards Heath Town Centre Masterplan would be on the agenda for the January meeting.

The Chairman noted that no more Members wished to comment on the Work Programme and so moved to the recommendation to note the Committee's Work Programme which was agreed with 11 votes in favour and 1 against.

#### RESOLVED

The Committee noted the Committee's Work Programme as set out at paragraph 5 of the tabled report.

## 10 QUESTIONS PURSUANT TO COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 10.2 DUE NOTICE OF WHICH HAS BEEN GIVEN.

None.

The meeting finished at 6.36 pm

Chairman